
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
 

 
 
 

#plymlicensing 

Licensing Sub Committee 
 

Tuesday 31 August 2021 

10.00 am 

Council House 

 

Members: 

Councillors Partridge, Rennie and Salmon. 

 

Fourth Member: 

Councillor McDonald. 

 

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 

 

Please note that, due to the nature of this Committee, we may need to send ‘to follow’ 

documents which were not expected at the time of the agenda publication.  These documents 

may be considered under part I or part II. 

 

For further information on attending Council meetings and how to engage in the democratic 

process please follow this link - http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/accesstomeetings 

 

 

 

Tracey Lee 

Chief Executive 

 

 

 
Oversight and Governance 

Chief Executive’s Department 

Plymouth City Council 

Floor 3 (West) Ballard House 

West Hoe Road 

Plymouth  PL1 3BJ 

 

Please ask for  Helen Rickman/Helen 

Prendergast 

T 01752 668000 

E http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

Published 19 August 2021 

Public Document Pack

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/accesstomeetings
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/


 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Licensing Sub Committee 
 
 

AGENDA 
  

1. Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair    

  

 The Committee will appoint a Chair and Vice-Chair for this particular meeting. 

  

2. Apologies    

  

 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members. 

  

3. Declarations of Interest    

  

 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

agenda. 

  

4. Chair's Urgent Business    

  

 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 

  

5. Grant of Premises Licence - St Anne's House, Jennycliff Lane, 

Plymouth PL9 9SN   

(Pages 1 - 46) 

  

 The Director for Public Health will submit a report on the grant of a Premise Licence for 

St Anne’s House, Jennycliff Lane, Plymouth PL9 9SN. 

  

6. Exempt Business    

  

 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 

business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt 

information as defined in paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended 

by the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

  

PART II - PRIVATE MEETING 

 

AGENDA 
 

Members of the Public to Note 

that under the law, the Committee is entitled to consider certain items in private.  Members of 

the public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.  

 

NIL. 
  

 



 

  

OFFICIAL:SENSITIVE 

PREMISES LICENCE GRANT REPORT 

Licensing Sub Committee

 

Date:    31 August 2021 

Title of Report: Grant of Premises Licence St Anne’s House, Jennycliff Lane, 

Plymouth, PL9 9SN 

Lead Member: Councillor John Riley (Cabinet Member for Customer Focus and 

Community Safety) 

Lead Strategic Director: Dr Ruth Harrell (Office of the Director of Public Health) 

Author:   Marie Price (Senior Enforcement Officer) 

Contact Email:   Licensing@plymouth.gov.uk 

Your Reference:  St Anne’s House  

Key Decision:   No 

Confidentiality:  Part I - Official 

Purpose of the report:  

An application has been received from Shannon Stevens & Neal Stoneman, in respect of St Anne’s 

House, Jennycliff Lane, Plymouth, PL9 9SN for the Grant of a premises licence under Section 17 of 

the Licensing Act 2003.  
 
      
Recommendations and Reasons: 

That Members consider this report. 

Alternative options considered and rejected: 

None. 

Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or the Plymouth Plan: 

Our Plan – A City to be proud of. 

This report links to the delivery of the City and Council objectives and outcomes 

within the plan. 

A Growing City: The Licensing Policy and system aims to provide a balance between the need 

to protect residents and to enable legitimate businesses to operate within a necessary and 

proportionate regulatory framework.  This in turn makes a safer, more vibrant Plymouth to allow 

economic growth and opportunities for increased levels of employment. 

A Caring Council: The Licensing Policy has put in place an appropriate framework to allow the 

effective control of alcohol supply and regulated entertainment to keep all members of society 

protected and feeling safe by focusing on prevention and early intervention. The licensing system 

minimise the burdens on business and to allow communities the opportunity to influence 

decisions. 

See Our Plan  

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     

Not applicable 

Page 1 Agenda Item 5

http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/new_corporate_plan.pdf


 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:  

None 

  
 
Other Implications: e.g. Health and Safety, Risk Management, Child Poverty: 
* When considering these proposals members have a responsibility to ensure they give due regard to the Council’s duty to 

promote equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote good relations between people who share 

protected characteristics under the Equalities Act and those who do not. 

 

Members should be aware that Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 puts a statutory 

duty on every Local Authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the need to do 

all that it reasonably can do to prevent crime and disorder in its area. 

Published work / information: 

For more information please see the below links.  

Statement of Licensing Policy  

Licensing Act 2003 

Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 - April_2018                             

 

Appendices  

 

Ref. Title of Appendix Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)  

If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate  

why it is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A  

of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.   

 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

A Briefing report (mandatory)        

            

         

         

         

 

Background papers:  

Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. 

Background papers are unpublished works, relied on to a material extent in preparing the report, 

which disclose facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the work is based. 

Title of background paper(s) Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable) 

If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it 

is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A of the Local 

Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.   

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

Application        

        

Page 2Agenda Item 5

https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Licensing%20Policy%202019%20%20-%202024_2.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf


 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

   

Sign off: 
 

Fin Click 

here 

to 

enter 

text. 

Leg 37138.ag
13.8.21 

M

o

n 

O

ff 

Click 

here 

to 

enter 

text. 

HR Click 

here 

to 

enter 

text. 

Asset

s  

Click 

here 

to 

enter 

text. 

Strat 

Proc 

Click here 

to enter 

text. 

Originating Senior Leadership Team member:  Click here to enter text. 

Please confirm the Strategic Director(s) has agreed the report?     Choose    

Date agreed: Date. 

 

Cabinet Member signature of approval:  [electronic signature (or typed name and statement of 

‘approved by email’) on Cabinet member approval only] 

Date: Date. 
 

 

 

 

Page 3 Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

1.0    INTRODUCTION 

On the 15 July 2021 the licensing department received an application from Shannon Stevens 

& Neal Stoneman for the Grant of a Premises Licence under Section 17 of the Licensing Act 

2003 in respect of St Anne’s House situated at Jennycliff Lane, Plymouth. 

 

1.2    Grant application. 

    This application is for a Wedding Venue and Holiday Accommodation. The description of the 

premises provided by the applicant is as follows: 

‘The house is located in Jennycliff - with both sea and countryside views. There is ample 

parking on site, with a private driveway and parking adjacent to the house. 

 

The house has an extensive garden, outdoor swimming pool and hot tub. The pool room 

also boasts a bar and indoor area for get-togethers. Inside there are several working 

fireplaces and St Anne’s House is a non-smoking property. These facilities are available for 

use by all of our guests during the season. Being mostly used for family holidays and family 

get togethers.  

    The pavement or pathway to the guest entrance has lighting that makes night-time navigation 

easier.’ 

  

1.3    Licensable Activities. 

        The following licensable activities and timings have been requested: 

   

(i) Late Night Refreshment (Indoors and Outdoors) 

Monday to Sunday 11pm to Midnight 

(j) Supply of Alcohol for consumption ON  and OFF the premises. 

Monday to Sunday 10am to 11pm   

(l) Hours Premises are Open to the Public                       

Monday to Sunday 07am to Midnight 

Non Standard Timings: From 07am – 10am daily for the provision of Breakfast and non- 

alcoholic refreshments  

One hour wind down period for late night refreshments 

 

 

 

1.4    The applicant has submitted an Operating Schedule (Appendix 1).   

 

1.5    Plans of premises supplied by applicant. (Appendix 2). 

 

1.6    Representations have been received in respect of this application. 

 

1.7   Cumulative Impact Policy 

  This application does not fall within an area to which the Cumulative Impact Policy applies. 

 

Page 4Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

2.0    RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES  

 

2.1  Devon & Cornwall Police – no representation made as the applicant has agreed to additional 

conditions to be added to their operating schedule. (Appendix 3). 

 

2.2   Environmental Health – no representations  

     

2.3    Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service – no representations. 

 

2.4    Trading Standards – no representations 

 

2.5    Planning Officer - no representations. 

 

2.6    Child Protection – no representations 

 

2.7    Health & Safety Executive – no representations. 

 

2.8    Health Authority (ODPH) – no representations. 

 

2.9    Licensing Authority – no representations. 

 

3.0   OTHER PARTIES 

  Representations have been received. Six letters have been received that are attached to this 

report marked appendix 4 to 9. 

 

4.0 CONSIDERATIONS 

4.1 The Committee is obliged to determine this application with a view to promoting the licensing 

objectives, which are: 

 The prevention of crime and disorder; 

 Public safety; 

 The prevention of public nuisance; 

 The protection of children from harm. 

   

In making its decision the Committee is also obliged to have regard to: 

 

  The guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 with the following 

paragraphs relevant to this application: 1.2 – 1.5; 1.16 – 1.17; 2.1; 2.3; 2.10; 2.12; 2.15 

– 2.21; 2.22; 2.25 – 2.28; 8.35 – 8.37; 9.3; 9.11; 9.37 – 9.40; 9.42 – 9.45; 10.2; 10.4 – 

10.5; 10.8 – 10.9; 10.10; 10.13 – 10.14; 16.1 - 16.6; 16.8;  16.26 - 16.33; and 16.36 - 

16.44; 16.52 – 16.53;  (detailed in full in appendix 10) 

 The Council’s own Licensing Policy with the following headed paragraphs being 

Page 5 Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

relevant to this application: Planning (Page 6); Licensing Objectives (Pages 9 – 11); 

Dispersal Policy (Page 12); Licensing Hours (Page 12), Drinking up and Winding Down 

Time (Page 13); Responsible Retailing for Off-Sales (pages 16 – 17); , Protecting 

children from harm (page 18), Public Nuisance (Page 19), Licensing conditions (page 

22)  

 

 The representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties. 

 

 The Committee must take such of the following steps as it considers appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives: 

1.  Grant the licence as asked. 

2.  Modify the conditions of the licence, by altering or omitting or adding to them.  

3. Reject the whole or part of the application. 

4. It may also refuse to specify a designated premises supervisor and/or only allow certain 

requested licensable activities. 

 

 The Committee is asked to note that it may not modify the conditions or reject the whole or 

part of the application merely because it considers it desirable to do so. It must actually be 
appropriate in order to promote the licensing objectives.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

Appendix 1 

Page 7 Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

Appendix 2 

Page 8Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9 Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 10Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

 

 

 

Page 11 Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13 Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

 

Appendix 3 

Page 14Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

Appendix 4 

Page 15 Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

Page 16Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17 Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

Appendix 5 

Page 18Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19 Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 6 

Page 20Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21 Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

Appendix 7 

Page 23 Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

Page 24Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25 Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

Appendix 8 

Page 26Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

Page 27 Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

Appendix 9 

Page 29 Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

Page 30Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

Page 31 Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

Page 32Agenda Item 5



 

V.4 June 2013  OFFICIAL: 

OFFICIAL: 

 

Guidance 182   APPENDIX 10 

Licensing Act 2003     

Relevant Applicable Sections 

 

1.2 – 1.5 

Licensing objectives and aims  

1.2 The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory objectives which must be 

addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.  

1.3 The licensing objectives are:  

• The prevention of crime and disorder;  

• Public safety;  

• The prevention of public nuisance; and  

• The protection of children from harm.  

1.4 Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing objectives, so that the 

promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration at all times.  

1.5 However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes. These are vitally 

important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in licensing work. They include:  

• protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and noise nuisance caused 

by irresponsible licensed premises;  

• giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively manage and police the 

night-time economy and take action against those premises that are causing problems;  

• recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in our local communities 

by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging innovation and supporting responsible 
premises;  

• providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local communities and 

empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions about the most appropriate licensing 

strategies for their local area; and  

• encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving local residents the 

opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that may affect them. 

1.16 – 1.17 

1.6 Section 182 of the 2003 Act provides that the Secretary of State must issue and, from time to time, 

may revise guidance to licensing authorities on the discharge of their functions under the 2003 Act. 
This revised guidance takes effect as soon as it is published. Where a licence application was made 

prior to the publication of the revised guidance, it should be processed in accordance with the 

guidance in effect at the time at which the application was made; the revised guidance does not apply 

retrospectively. However, all applications received by the licensing authority on or after the date the 

revised guidance was published should be processed in accordance with the revised guidance.  

 

Purpose  

1.7 This Guidance is provided to licensing authorities in relation to the carrying out of their functions 

under the 2003 Act. It also provides information to magistrates’ courts hearing appeals against licensing 

decisions and has been made widely available for the benefit of those who run licensed premises, their 

legal advisers and the general public. It is a key medium for promoting best practice, ensuring 

consistent application of licensing powers across England and Wales and for promoting fairness, equal 

treatment and proportionality.  

Page 33 Agenda Item 5



 

OFFICIAL Page 34 of 45 

 

OFFICIAL 

1.8 The police remain key enforcers of licensing law. This Guidance does not bind police officers who, 

within the parameters of their force orders and the law, remain operationally independent. However, 

this Guidance is provided to support and assist police officers in interpreting and implementing the 

2003 Act in the promotion of the four licensing objectives.  

 

2.1  

Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime and disorder. 

They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety Partnership (CSP).  

 

2.3 

Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder including the 

prevention of illegal working in licensed premises (see paragraph 10.10). For example, where there is 

good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) 

cameras both inside and immediately outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-

social behaviour and crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their 

premises for the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or its customers. But 

any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure that the precise 

location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are properly covered and there is 

no subsequent dispute over the terms of the condition.  

 

2.10 

Ensuring safe departure of those using the premises  

2.10 Licence holders should make provision to ensure that premises users safely leave their premises. 

Measures that may assist include:  

 

• Providing information on the premises of local taxi companies who can provide safe transportation 

home; and  

• Ensuring adequate lighting outside the premises, particularly on paths leading to and from the 

premises and in car parks. 

 

2.12 

Safe capacities  

2.12 “Safe capacities” should only be imposed where appropriate for the promotion of public safety or 

the prevention of disorder on the relevant premises. For example, if a capacity has been imposed 

through other legislation, it would be inappropriate to reproduce it in a premises licence. Indeed, it 

would also be wrong to lay down conditions which conflict with other legal requirements. However, if 

no safe capacity has been imposed through other legislation, a responsible authority may consider it 

appropriate for a new capacity to be attached to the premises which would apply at any material time 

when the licensable activities are taking place and make representations to that effect. For example, in 

certain circumstances, capacity limits may be appropriate in preventing disorder, as overcrowded 

venues can increase the risks of crowds becoming frustrated and hostile.  

 

2.15 – 2.21 

Public nuisance  

Page 34Agenda Item 5



 

OFFICIAL Page 35 of 45 

 

OFFICIAL 

2.15 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through representations, 

to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to prevent it in terms of 

conditions attached to specific premises licences and club premises certificates. It is therefore 

important that in considering the promotion of this licensing objective, licensing authorities and 

responsible authorities focus on the effect of the licensable activities at the specific premises on 

persons living and working (including those carrying on business) in the area around the premises 

which may be disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light 

pollution, noxious smells and litter.  

2.16 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however not 

narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may include in 

appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and environment of other 

persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises. Public nuisance may also arise as a 

result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust, odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to 

health.  

2.17 Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control the levels 

of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple measure such as ensuring that 

doors and windows are kept closed after a particular time, or persons are not permitted in garden 

areas of the premises after a certain time. More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic 

curtains or rubber speaker mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be appropriate. 

However, conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in circumstances 

where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any conditions appropriate to 

promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type, nature and characteristics of 

the specific premises and its licensable activities. Licensing authorities should avoid inappropriate or 

disproportionate measures that could deter events that are valuable to the community, such as live 

music. Noise limiters, for example, are expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a 

considerable burden for smaller venues.  

2.18 As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in certain 

circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those living in the area of the 

premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing authorities and responsible 

authorities should be one of prevention and when their powers are engaged, licensing authorities 

should be aware of the fact that other legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant 

representations and additional conditions may be appropriate.  

2.19 Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions should normally 

focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive period for people being disturbed 

by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the early morning when residents in adjacent properties 

may be attempting to go to sleep or are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for 

performances of live music between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to 

noise emanating from the premises may also be appropriate to address any disturbance anticipated as 

customers enter and leave.  

 

2.20 Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting outside 

premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may itself give rise to light 

pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities and responsible authorities will need to 

balance these issues.  

2.21 Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the personal 

responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-social behaviour is 

accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly reasonable for a licensing authority to 

impose a condition, following relevant representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place 

signs at the exits from the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if 

Page 35 Agenda Item 5



 

OFFICIAL Page 36 of 45 

 

OFFICIAL 

they wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to respect 

the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.  

 

2.22 

Protection of children from harm  

2.22 The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral, 

psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the harms associated 

directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as exposure to strong language and 

sexual expletives (for example, in the context of exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). 

Licensing authorities must also consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when 

undertaking licensing functions.  

 

2.25 – 2.28 

2.25 Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times at which the 

events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for children to enter the 

premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of premises to schools and youth clubs 

so that applicants take appropriate steps to ensure that advertising relating to their premises, or 

relating to events at their premises, is not displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the 

premises.  

2.26 Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when preparing an 

operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to be taken to protect children 

from harm when on the premises.  

2.27 Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities taking place on the 
premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age verification, other conditions relating to 

the protection of children from harm can include:  

• restrictions on the hours when children may be present;  

• restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when particular specified 

activities are taking place;  

• restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access;  

• age restrictions (below 18);  

• restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;  

• requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination of requirements which 

provide that children under a particular age must be accompanied by an adult); and  

• full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities are taking place.  

 

2.28 Please see also Chapter 10 for details about the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing 

Conditions) Order 2010.  

 

8.35 – 8.37 

Beer gardens or other outdoor spaces  

8.35 Applicants will want to consider whether they might want to use a garden or other outdoor space 

as a location from which alcohol will be consumed. The sale of alcohol is to be treated as taking place 

where the alcohol is appropriated to the contract. In scenarios where drink orders are taken by a 

member of staff in the garden or outdoor space and the member of staff then collects the drinks from 

the licensed premises and returns to deliver them to the customer this would be treated as an off-sale 

and any conditions that relate to off-sales would apply.  

Page 36Agenda Item 5



 

OFFICIAL Page 37 of 45 

 

OFFICIAL 

8.36 In such cases it will be not necessary to include the garden or other outdoor space on the plan as 

part of the area covered by the premises licence. However, it will be necessary for the applicant to 

include the garden or other outdoor space on the plan as part of the area covered by the premises 

licence if the intention is to provide a service whereby drinks are available for sale and consumption 

directly from that area (i.e. the provision of on-sales). This would apply in the case of an outdoor bar 

or a service whereby a member of staff who is in the garden or outdoor space carries with them 

drinks that are available for sale (without the need for the staff member to return to the licensed 

premises to collect them).  

8.37 If the beer garden or other outdoor area is to be used for the consumption of off-sales only, there 

is no requirement to show it on the plan of the premises, but the prescribed application form requires 

the applicant to provide a description of where the place is and its proximity to the premises.  

 

9.3 

Where representations are made  

9.3 Where a representation concerning the licensing objectives is made by a responsible authority 

about a proposed operating schedule and it is relevant (see paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10 below), the licensing 

authority’s discretion will be engaged. It will also be engaged if another person makes relevant 

representations to the licensing authority, which are also not frivolous or vexatious (see paragraphs 9.4 

to 9.10 below). Relevant representations can be made in opposition to, or in support of, an application 

and can be made by any individual, body or business that has grounds to do so.  

 

9.11 

The role of responsible authorities  

9.11 Responsible authorities under the 2003 Act are automatically notified of all new applications. 

While all responsible authorities may make representations regarding applications for licences and club 

premises certificates and full variation applications, it is the responsibility of each responsible authority 

to determine when they have appropriate grounds to do so.  

 

9.37 – 9.40 

9.37 As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the steps 

considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives that have given rise 

to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed areas. A responsible authority or 

other person may choose to rely on their written representation. They may not add further 

representations to those disclosed to the applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on their 

existing representation and should be allowed sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and 

practicable limits.  

9.38 In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the overall 

interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate weight to:  

Page 37 Agenda Item 5



 

OFFICIAL Page 38 of 45 

 

OFFICIAL 

• the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;  

• the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties;  

• this Guidance;  

• its own statement of licensing policy. 

 

9.39 The licensing authority should give its decision within five working days of the conclusion of the 

hearing (or immediately in certain specified cases) and provide reasons to support it. This will be 

important if there is an appeal by any of the parties. Notification of a decision must be accompanied by 

information on the right of the party to appeal. After considering all the relevant issues, the licensing 
authority may grant the application subject to such conditions that are consistent with the operating 

schedule. Any conditions imposed must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives; 

there is no power for the licensing authority to attach a condition that is merely aspirational. For 

example, conditions may not be attached which relate solely to the health of customers rather than 

their direct physical safety. Any conditions added to the licence must be those imposed at the hearing 

or those agreed when a hearing has not been necessary.  

9.40 Alternatively, the licensing authority may refuse the application on the grounds that this is 

appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. It may also refuse to specify a designated 

premises supervisor and/or only allow certain requested licensable activities. In the interests of 

transparency, the licensing authority should publish hearings procedures in full on its website to ensure 

that those involved have the most current information.  

 

9.42 – 9.45 

Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives  

9.42 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are appropriate for the promotion 

of the licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing determinations should be considered on a case-

by-case basis. They should take into account any representations or objections that have been received 

from responsible authorities or other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises 

user as the case may be.  

9.43 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what it is intended to achieve.  

9.44 Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives requires an assessment of what action or step would be suitable to achieve that end. While 

this does not therefore require a licensing authority to decide that no lesser step will achieve the aim, 

the authority should aim to consider the potential burden that the condition would impose on the 

premises licence holder (such as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable activities) as well 

as the potential benefit in terms of the promotion of the licensing objectives. However, it is imperative 

that the authority ensures that the factors which form the basis of its determination are limited to 

consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing outside those parameters. As with the 

consideration of licence variations, the licensing authority should consider wider issues such as other 

conditions already in place to mitigate potential negative impact on the promotion of the licensing 

objectives and the track record of the business. Further advice on determining what is appropriate 

when imposing conditions on a licence or certificate is provided in Chapter 10. The licensing authority 

is expected to come to its determination based on an assessment of the evidence on both the risks and 

benefits either for or against making the determination.  

 

 

Considering cases where licensing and planning applications are made simultaneously  

9.45 Where businesses have indicated, when applying for a licence under the 2003 Act, that they have 

also applied for planning permission or that they intend to do so, licensing committees and officers 

Page 38Agenda Item 5



 

OFFICIAL Page 39 of 45 

 

OFFICIAL 

should consider discussion with their planning counterparts prior to determination with the aim of 

agreeing mutually acceptable operating hours and scheme designs.  

 

10.2 

10.2 Conditions include any limitations or restrictions attached to a licence or certificate and 

essentially are the steps or actions that the holder of the premises licence or the club premises 

certificate will be required to take or refrain from taking in relation to the carrying on of licensable 

activities at the premises in question. Failure to comply with any condition attached to a licence or 

certificate is a criminal offence, which on conviction is punishable by an unlimited fine or up to six 

months’ imprisonment. The courts have made clear that it is particularly important that conditions 

which are imprecise or difficult for a licence holder to observe should be avoided.  

 

10.4 – 10.5 

Proposed conditions  

10.4 The conditions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives should emerge 

initially from the risk assessment carried out by a prospective licence or certificate holder, which they 

should carry out before making their application for a premises licence or club premises certificate. 

This would be translated into the steps recorded in the operating schedule or club operating schedule, 

which must also set out the proposed hours during which licensable activities will be conducted and 

any other hours during which the premises will be open to the public.  

10.5 It is not acceptable for licensing authorities to simply replicate the wording from an applicant’s 

operating schedule. A condition should be interpreted in accordance with the applicant’s intention.  

 

10.8 – 10.9 

Imposed conditions  

10.8 The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion has been exercised 

following receipt of relevant representations and it is satisfied as a result of a hearing (unless all parties 

agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is appropriate to impose conditions to promote one or more 

of the four licensing objectives. In order to promote the crime prevention licensing objective 

conditions may be included that are aimed at preventing illegal working in licensed premises. This 

provision also applies to minor variations.  

10.9 It is possible that in some cases no additional conditions will be appropriate to promote the 

licensing objectives.  

 

10.10 

Proportionality  
10.10 The 2003 Act requires that licensing conditions should be tailored to the size, type, location and 

characteristics and activities taking place at the premises concerned. Conditions should be determined 

on a case-by-case basis and standardised conditions which ignore these individual aspects should be 

avoided. For example, conditions should not be used to implement a general policy in a given area such 

as the use of CCTV, polycarbonate drinking vessels or identity scanners where they would not be 

appropriate to the specific premises. Conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of 

illegal working in premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night refreshment might include requiring a 

premises licence holder to undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed 

premises or requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work check is retained 

at the licensed premises. Licensing authorities and other responsible authorities should be alive to the 

Page 39 Agenda Item 5



 

OFFICIAL Page 40 of 45 

 

OFFICIAL 

indirect costs that can arise because of conditions. These could be a deterrent to holding events that 

are valuable to the community or for the funding of good and important causes. Licensing authorities 

should therefore ensure that any conditions they impose are only those which are appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives.  

 

10.13 – 10.14 

Hours of trading  

10.13 The Government acknowledges that different licensing strategies may be appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives in different areas. The 2003 Act gives the licensing authority 

power to make decisions about the hours during which premises can conduct licensable activities as 

part of the implementation of its licensing policy statement. Licensing authorities are best placed to 

make decisions about appropriate opening hours in their areas based on their local knowledge and in 

consultation with responsible authorities. However, licensing authorities must always consider each 

application and must not impose predetermined licensed opening hours, without giving individual 

consideration to the merits of each application.  

10.14 Where there are objections to an application to extend the hours during which licensable 

activities are to be carried on and the licensing authority determines that this would undermine the 

licensing objectives, it may reject the application or grant it with appropriate conditions and/or 

different hours from those requested.  

 

16.1 - 16.6 

16. Regulated entertainment  

Types of regulated entertainment  

16.1 Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act sets out what activities are regarded as the provision of regulated 

entertainment and when they are licensable and those activities which are not and therefore exempt 

from the regulated entertainment regime. Changes to regulated entertainment are due to take effect 

on 6 April 2015. Therefore, up until that date you should refer to chapter 16 of the guidance published 

in October 2014.  

16.2 The descriptions of entertainment activities licensable under the 2003 Act are:  

 

• a performance of a play;  
• an exhibition of a film;  

• an indoor sporting event;  

• a boxing or wrestling entertainment;  

• a performance of live music;  

• any playing of recorded music;  

• a performance of dance; and  

• entertainment of a similar description to a performance of live music, any playing of recorded music 

or a performance of dance.  

16.3 To be licensable, one or more of these activities needs to be provided for the purpose (at least 

partly) of entertaining an audience; has to be held on premises made available for the purpose of 

enabling that activity; and must also either:  

 

• take place in the presence of a public audience, or  

• where that activity takes place in private, be the subject of a charge made with a view to profit.  

16.4 Guidance around what constitutes audiences and private events is at paragraphs 16.11-16.14.  

 

Overview of circumstances in which entertainment activities are not licensable  

Page 40Agenda Item 5



 

OFFICIAL Page 41 of 45 

 

OFFICIAL 

16.5 There are a number of exemptions that mean that a licence (or other authorisation18) under the 

2003 Act is not required. This Guidance cannot give examples of every eventuality or possible 

entertainment activity that is not licensable. However, the following activities are examples of 

entertainment which are not licensable:  

 

• activities which involve participation as acts of worship in a religious context;  

• activities in places of public religious worship;  

• education – teaching students to perform music or to dance;  

• the demonstration of a product – for example, a guitar – in a music shop;  

• the rehearsal of a play or performance of music for a private audience where no charge is made with 

a view to making a profit; 

• Morris dancing (or similar)19;  

• Incidental music – the performance of live music or the playing of recorded music if it is incidental to 

some other activity20;  

• Incidental film – an exhibition of moving pictures if it is incidental to some other activity21;  

• A spontaneous performance of music, singing or dancing;  

• Garden fetes – or similar if not being promoted or held for purposes of private gain;  

• Films for advertisement, information, education or in museums or art galleries;  

• Television or radio broadcasts – as long as the programme is live and simultaneous;  

• Vehicles in motion – at a time when the vehicle is not permanently or temporarily parked;  

• Games played in pubs, youth clubs etc. (e.g. pool, darts and table tennis);  

• Stand-up comedy; and  

• Provision of entertainment facilities (e.g. dance floors)22.  

16.6 As a result of deregulatory changes that have amended the 2003 Act23, no licence is required for 

the following activities:  

 

• Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the 

audience does not exceed 500.  

• Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that 

the audience does not exceed 50024.  

• Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises between 

08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets 

consent to the screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each 

such screening abides by age classification ratings.  

• Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for an event between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, 

provided that those present do not exceed 1000.  

• Boxing or wrestling entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of 

Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the 

audience does not exceed 1000.  
• Live music: no licence permission is required for:  

– a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.  

– a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to 

sell alcohol for consumption on those premises, 

provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  

– a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace26 that 

does not have a licence, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  

– a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village 

hall, community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to 

sell alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for 

the performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.  

Page 41 Agenda Item 5



 

OFFICIAL Page 42 of 45 

 

OFFICIAL 

– a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential 

premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does 

not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: 

(i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.  

• Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:  

– any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell 

alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 50027.  

– any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall, 

community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell 
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the 

performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.  

– any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non- residential premises 

of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not 

exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) 

the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the 

hospital.  

• Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit 

on audience size for:  

– any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is 

provided by or on behalf of the local authority;  

– any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the 

entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;  

– any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by 

or on behalf of the school proprietor; and  

– any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) 

taking place at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that 

accommodates the audience, and (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site 

for more than 28 consecutive days. 

 

16.8 

16.8 Of course, anyone involved in the organisation or provision of entertainment activities – whether 

or not any such activity is licensable under the 2003 Act – must comply with any applicable duties that 

may be imposed by other legislation relevant to the event (e.g. in areas such as crime and disorder, fire, 

health and safety, noise, nuisance and planning).30 Any such person should take steps to be aware of 

relevant best practice, and may find responsible authorities a useful source of expert support and 

advice.  

 

16.26 - 16.33 

Live music  

16.26 Live music is licensable:  

 

• where a performance of live music – whether amplified or unamplified – takes place before 08.00 or 

after 23.00 on any day;  

• where a performance of amplified live music does not take place either on relevant licensed premises, 

or at a workplace that is not licensed other than for the provision of late night refreshment;  

• where a performance of amplified live music takes place at a time when the relevant licensed 

premises are not open for the purposes of being used for the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption 

on the premises52;  

Page 42Agenda Item 5



 

OFFICIAL Page 43 of 45 

 

OFFICIAL 

• where a performance of amplified live music takes place at relevant licensed premises, or 

workplaces53, in the presence of an audience of more than 500 people54; or  

• where a licensing authority intentionally removes the effect of the deregulation provided for by the 

2003 Act when imposing a condition on a premises licence or club premises certificate as a result of a 

licence review55.  

16.27 In any of the above circumstances, unless the performance of live music is appropriately 

authorised by a premises licence, club premises certificate or TEN, allowing it to take place could lead 

to enforcement action and, where relevant, a review of the alcohol licence or certificate.  

16.28 A public performance of live unamplified music that takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the 

same day no longer requires a licence under the 2003 Act in any location. An exception to this is 

where a specific condition related to live music is included following a review of the premises licence 

or club premises certificate in respect of relevant licensed premises.  

 

Key terms used in relation to live music  

16.30 Under the live music provisions, “music” includes vocal or instrumental music or any 

combination of the two. “Live music” is a performance of live music in the presence of an audience 

which it is intended to entertain. While a performance of live music can include the playing of some 

recorded music, ‘live’ music requires that the performance does not consist entirely of the playing of 

recorded music without any additional (substantial and continual) creative contribution being made. So, 

for example, a drum machine or backing track being used to accompany a vocalist57 or a band would 

be part of the performance of amplified live music. The performance of a DJ who is merely playing 

tracks would not be classified as live music, but it might if he or she was performing a set which largely 

consisted of mixing recorded music in a live performance to create new sounds58. There will inevitably 

be a degree of judgement as to whether a performance is live music (or recorded music) and 

organisers of events should check with their licensing authority if this consideration is relevant to 

whether the activity is authorised by a licence or certificate. In the event of a dispute about whether a 

performance is live music or not, it will be for the licensing authority initially and ultimately, for the 

courts to decide in the individual circumstances of any case.  

16.31 A “workplace” is as defined in regulation 2(1) of the Workplace (Health, Safety and Welfare) 

Regulations 1992 and is anywhere that is made available to any person as a place of work. It is a very 

wide term which can include outdoor spaces, as well as the means of entry and exit.  

16.32 A “relevant licensed premises” for the purposes of this chapter is one which is authorised to sell 

or supply alcohol for consumption on the premises by a premises licence or club premises certificate. 

Premises cannot benefit from the deregulation introduced by the 2012 Act by virtue of holding an 

authorisation for the sale or supply of alcohol under a TEN.59  

 

Recorded music  

16.33 No licence is required for recorded music where it takes place on premises which are 

authorised by a premises licence or club premises certificate to be used for the supply of alcohol for 

consumption on the premises. However, recorded music remains licensable:  

 

• where the playing of recorded music takes places before 08.00 or after 23.00 on any day;  

• where the playing of recorded music takes place at a time when the relevant licensed premises are 

not open for the purposes of being used for the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the 

premises;60  

• where the playing of recorded music takes place at relevant licensed premises in thepresence of an 

audience of more than 500 people; and  

• where a licensing authority intentionally removes the effect of the deregulation provided for by the 

2003 Act (as amended) 

16.36 - 16.44 

Page 43 Agenda Item 5



 

OFFICIAL Page 44 of 45 

 

OFFICIAL 

Licence conditions  

Live Music or recorded music  

16.36 Any existing licence conditions64 (or conditions added on a determination of an application for a 

premises licence or club premises certificate65) which relate to live music or recorded music remain in 

place, but are suspended between the hours of 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day where the following 

conditions are met:  

 

• at the time of the music entertainment, the premises are open for the purposes of being used for the 

sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises;  
• if the music is amplified, it takes place before an audience of no more than 500 people; and  

• the music takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day.  

16.37 Whether a licence condition relates to live or recorded music will be a matter of fact in each 

case. In some instances, it will be obvious that a condition relates to music and will be suspended, for 

example “during performances of live music all doors and windows must remain closed”. In other 

instances, it might not be so obvious: for example, a condition stating “during performances of 

regulated entertainment all doors and windows must remain closed” would be suspended insofar as it 

relates to music between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day to an audience of up to 500, but the 

condition would continue to apply if there was regulated entertainment after 23.00.  

16.38 More general licence conditions (e.g. those relating to overall management of potential noise 

nuisance) that are not specifically related to the provision of entertainment (e.g.  

 

signage asking patrons to leave quietly) will continue to have effect.  

16.39 Chapter 9 of this Guidance sets out how a licensing authority must determine applications for a 

new licence or to vary an existing premises licence. Licence conditions imposed, in accordance with 

paragraphs 9.41 to 9.43, for live or recorded music activities will only apply if the activity meets the 

criteria of having more than 500 people present, and/or the activities are taking place between 23.00 

and 08.00.  

16.40 These conditions will, in effect, be suspended between 08.00 and 23.00 if a performance of live 

music or the playing of recorded music takes place before an audience of 500 people or fewer, but will 

remain on the face of the licence for when these activities may take place under other circumstances.  

16.41 Where a performance of live music or the playing of recorded music on relevant licensed 

premises is not licensable, it remains possible for anyone to apply for a review of a licence or 

certificate, if there are appropriate grounds to do so.  

 

Beer gardens  

16.42 Beer gardens are often included as part of a premises licence or club premises certificate. Live 
amplified music that takes place in a beer garden is exempt from licensing requirements, provided the 

beer garden is included in the licence or certificate applying to the relevant licensed premises, and the 

performance takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day before an audience of 500 people 

or fewer.  

16.43 Where a beer garden does not form part of the relevant licensed premises and so is not included 

in plans attached to a premises licence or club premises certificate, it is nevertheless very likely that it 

will be a workplace67. Paragraph 12B of Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act says that a performance of live 

music in a workplace that does not have a licence (except to provide late night refreshment) is not 

regulated entertainment if it takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day in front of an 

audience of no more than 500 people. Note that the exemption in paragraph 12B does not apply to 

the playing of recorded music.  

16.44 However, a licensing authority may, where justified68, impose a licence condition that relates to 

the performance of live music in an unlicensed beer garden being served by any associated premises 

Page 44Agenda Item 5



 

OFFICIAL Page 45 of 45 

 

OFFICIAL 

licence or club premises certificate. Provided such a condition is lawfully imposed, it takes effect in 

accordance with its terms.  

 

16.52 – 16.53 

Conditions relating to other non-licensable activities  

16.52 If appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and if there is a link to remaining 

licensable activities, conditions that relate to non-licensable activities can be added to or altered on 

that premises licence or club premises certificate at review following problems occurring at the 

premises. This has been a feature of licence conditions since the 2003 Act came into force. A relevant 

example could be the use of conditions relating to large screen broadcasts of certain sporting events 

which, combined with alcohol consumption, could create a genuine risk to the promotion of the 

licensing objectives. It is also not uncommon for licence conditions relating to the sale of alcohol to 

restrict access to outside areas, such as unlicensed beer gardens, after a certain time.  

16.53 Similarly, while karaoke no longer needs licensing as the provision of entertainment facilities71 

(and will generally be classed as a performance of live music72) it might, for example, be possible on 

review to limit the use or volume of a microphone made available for customers on an ‘open-mic’ night 

(which encompasses more than just live music), if a problem had occurred because of customers 

purchasing alcohol for consumption on the premises becoming louder and less aware of causing noise 

nuisance later in the evening. Another example might be a condition restricting access to a dance floor 

at certain times, where the presence of customers in close proximity who had been consuming alcohol 

on the premises had led to serious disorder. In the first instance it is for the licensing authority to 

satisfy itself that a particular condition is appropriate and lawful in each case.  

 

Page 45 Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Grant of Premises Licence - St Anne's House, Jennycliff Lane, Plymouth PL9 9SN

